FFGC History: OUR FIRST DECADE: 1924-1934
Presidents during this first decade:   Mrs. (Adelaide Yates) Joseph R. Ellicott (1925-1927) of 






Ormond Beach
Mrs. (Ninah May Holden) Arthur Gerrish Cummer (1927-1929) of Jacksonville 

Mrs. (Cora S.) Edwin H. Riggs (1929-1931) of Winter Park "Unity in Service" 
 2nd Lt. Mary Nunez (Mrs. Charles W.) TenEick (1931-1933) of Hollywood
Mrs. William M. Fielder, who later became Mrs. Robert A. Patton, (1933-1935) of Tampa

Florida Federation of Garden Clubs organized with 4 districts in Florida, 24 April 1924:


*Clubs paid $5 dues to FFGC 



*Constitution and Bylaws adopted, 7 January 1925



*First governing Board met on 25 April 1925



*First Standing Committee appointed: Billboards


First FFGC Year Book published in 1928


Became Charter member of National Council of State Garden Clubs, Inc., 1929


Junior Garden Clubs initiated, 1931

First garden tour in Florida "Garden Run" 1930, sponsored by Halifax Country

Official state flower, the Orange Blossom, adopted along with our FFGC seal, 1932


Redistricted from 4 districts to 6 districts in 1933

First FFGC Convention held in Jacksonville January 14, 1926


*1927 in Ormond Beach (January 11)



*1928 in Winter Park (March 28-29)



*1929 in Miami (March 20-21)



*1930 in Tampa (March 27-28)



*1931 in Orlando (March 4-5)



*1932 in St. Petersburg (March 15-16)



*1933 in Gainesville (April 19-20)



*1934 in Tallahassee (April 18-19)

Club affiliations with Federation: 

1925-Jacksonville, Halifax Country, Winter Park, Miami

1927-Gainesville, Winter Haven, Shenandoah, South Florida and North Florida (Miami), Orlando, Sanford, Deland)

1928- Daytona Beach/Arlington, Daytona Beach, Cocoa/Rockledge, Tampa Federation, Hollywood

1929-Foley/Lantana, Lake City, Ft Lauderdale, St Petersburg, Monticello, Frostproof

1930- Lake Worth, Miami Beach, Riverside (Miami), Lakeland, Pioneer (Ocala)

1931-Ft Pierce

1932- Melbourne, West Palme, Holleman Park (Miami), Pensacola, Tallahassee

1933-Vero Beach/Indian River, Federated circles of Sarasota

1934-Bradenton/Manatee River

Four women in different counties in Florida, working independently, had each organized a garden club in her community almost simultaneously and without knowledge other such groups existed in the state.

Three of these women met on April 24, 1924, at the close of the flower show in Jacksonville, to discuss the feasibility of organizing a state federation of garden clubs. They were Mrs. Arthur G. (Ninah) Cummer, president of the Federated Circles of the Garden Club of Jacksonville (Duvall County), Mrs. Joseph R Ellicott of Ormond Beach, president of the Garden Club of Halifax Country (Volusia County), and Miss Grace Edwards, president of the Winter Park Garden Club (Orange County). With them were a number of the Jacksonville club’s governing board.
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Out of that meeting came the decision to organize the Florida Federation of Garden Clubs, to invite the Garden Club of Miami (Dade County) with Mrs. E. H. Douglass as president to become the charter member, and to appoint Mrs. John A. Ferguson, assisted by Miss Edwards and Miss Gerda Meigs, to draft a constitution and bylaws.

The constitution and bylaws, presented by a committee chaired by Mrs. John A. Ferguson, subsequently adopted on 7 January 1925, were modeled after those of the New York Federation of Garden Clubs and the committee had the assistance of Mrs. Fred Joel Swift, a member of the New York Federation.

Officers of the Florida Federation of Garden Clubs as elected by the four charter member clubs were Mrs. Joseph R. Ellicott, president; Miss Grace Edwards, first vice president; Mrs. T. V. Moore, second vice president; Mrs. George Couper Gibbs, third vice president; Mrs. John T. Alsop, recording secretary; Mrs. Macon Thornton, corresponding secretary; and Miss Lula McLendon, treasurer.

These women had two intense interests. First was the belief more study should be given to the horticulture and floral needs of the state and, second, the realization that  if the Garden Club movement was to live and grow there must be a coordinated effort to organize more clubs throughout Florida working to protect and enhance its beauty as well as to assist others in the study of horticulture.
At the first meeting of the Governing Board on 25 April 1925, Mrs. Ellicott announced appointment of directors of the Federations four districts—Northern, Central, Southern and Western. Chairmen for standing committees were considered; the Billboard Committee being the first delegated to do Federation work. The first money in the treasury, $5 dues from The Winter Park Garden Club, was received.

Decision was reached to hold the first convention in Miami. Later, hurricane damage to that area caused a change in plans and it was held in Jacksonville 14 January, 1926. The second convention was held in Ormond Beach on 11 January 1927, with flowers grown and donated by the late John D. Rockefeller featured in decorations. Highlighting the agenda was adoption of the Federation’s ‘Highway Resolution” calling for a 100-foot right-of-way on all state and county roads. The Garden Club of the Halifax Country, hostess group, had the satisfaction of having the Forestry Bill it endorsed enacted into law by the 1927 Florida Legislature. At this convention Mrs. Arthur Cummer, affectionately known as “Mother of the Florida Federation of Garden Clubs”, was elected as the second state president. During her two-year administration Mrs. Cummer introduced the “Circle Plan” and the third convention in Winter Park, March 28-29, changes in the Constitution and Bylaws provided for larger clubs, organized on the circle plan, to have proportionate representation with the smaller clubs. Also, annual dues were increased from 10 to 25 cents per capita and it was in 1928 the first Garden Club Year Book was published.
By the time of the 1929 convention in Miami, the Federation in four short years had grown from an infant to a strong personality with 2,180 members in 24 clubs. The treasury had $812.92 to its credit and Mrs. Cummer had worked closely with Dr. David Fairchild, laying the groundwork for the later development of Fairchild Tropical Garden.

Delegates to the convention endorsed a bill to create a State Arbor Day on the third Friday in January and gave endorsement to the work of both the State Forestry and Plant Boards, Everglades State Park, and a movement to check the drainage of Paynes Prairie so as to save the lotus. At this convention Mrs. Edward H. Riggs, Winter Park, became the third president of the Federation heralding two years of further growth with emphasis placed on beautification of home grounds as well as those around public buildings. It was during her administration the Junior Garden Club movement, beamed at training the children who would be “garden clubbers” in the future, was born.

In 1930 the first Florida Tour of gardens, called a “garden run”, was sponsored by the Garden Club of Halifax Country. It engendered much interest in horticulture and landscape horticulture. A law to license tree surgery statewide was sponsored by the Federation and enforcement of the law prohibiting signs on trees and posts, sponsored by the Federated Circles of Garden Club of Jacksonville and passed by the 1929 legislature as forerunner of outdoor advertising regulation, was noted.

The 1930 and 1931 conventions were held in Tampa and Orlando, respectively. Under the leadership of Mrs. Charles W. TenEick, president from 1931-1933 administration, an ambitious seven-point beautification program embodying landscape gardening and art was undertaken. It embraced a study to observe what plants nature had put in certain places, introduction of plant material from other countries under auspices of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, plant identification, landscape horticulture, highway planning and planting, garden design, city and regional planting. 

During Mrs. TenEick’s tenure, with the 1932 convention in St. Petersburg and that of 1933 in Gainesville, there were other accomplishments. They included adoption of the seal embodying the Federation flower, orange blossom, with colors white, green and yellow to appear on Federation stationery and year books; increasing the membership to 3,039 in 43 clubs and the number of districts from four to six; and having the National Council of State Garden Clubs, of which Florida Federation is a charter member, accept the invitation to hold its 1933 convention in Miami. 
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